

PACE Academy Trust

Attendance and Punctuality Policy

Beecholme Primary School



Document Co	ntrol Table				
Document Title		Attendance and Punctuality Policy			
Author		WPA			
Version numb	er:	V2			
Date approved	d:	2015			
Approved by:		Local Gove	erning Body		
Date of next review:		TBC	ТВС		
Document His	story:				
Version	Date	Author	Note of revisions		
V1	2015	WPA			
V2	April 2021	СМ	 Amendments to wording to reflect primary school practice – previous version written for Coulsdon Cluster Reviewed content – minor changes made to reflect current practice within schools Removed parental letters and register markings to separate supplementary document 		
V3	Spring 2023	СМ	Reviewed and sections replaced with model policy from the Key and guidance published May 2022 which applies from September 2022		
V4	Summer 2023	School	PACE policy personalised to individual schools		

Contents

1. Introduction	3
2. Aims	3
3. Legislation and guidance	4
4. Roles and responsibilities	4
5. Recording attendance	6
6. Authorised and unauthorised absence	9
7. Strategies for promoting attendance and punctuality	10
8. Attendance and punctuality monitoring	10
9. Deletions from the register /removals from the school role	12
10. Monitoring arrangements	12
11. Links with other policies	13
Appendix 1: attendance codes	14
Appendix 2: Request for leave term time for exceptional circumstances.	16
Appendix 3: Guidance and examples of parenting contracts	18

1. Introduction

PACE Academy Trust recognises that all pupils have the right to access full time education. A good education helps to give children the best possible start in life. Evidence suggests that children out of school are at risk of becoming victims of crime or abuse and more likely to be drawn into anti-social behaviour. Regular attendance is essential to enable students to take part in all the opportunities available and to develop their full potential. We are committed to working in partnership with our parents/carers who are responsible for ensuring their children access education. Through the implementation of this policy, pupils, staff, parents/carers and governors all have a part to play in securing the following aims:

2. Aims

We are committed to meeting our obligation with regards to school attendance through our whole-school culture and ethos that values good attendance, including:

- Ensuring every pupil has access to the full-time education to which they are entitled
- Promoting good attendance
- Promoting and supporting punctuality
- Reducing absence, including persistent and severe absence
- Acting early to address patterns of absence
- Building strong relationships with families to ensure pupils have the support in place to attend school

3. Legislation and guidance

This policy meets the requirements of the <u>working together to improve school attendance</u> from the Department for Education (DfE), and refers to the DfE's statutory guidance on <u>school attendance parental</u> <u>responsibility measures</u>. These documents are drawn from the following legislation setting out the legal powers and duties that govern school attendance:

- Part 6 of <u>The Education Act 1996</u>
- Part 3 of The Education Act 2002
- Part 7 of The Education and Inspections Act 2006
- The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 (and 2010, 2011, 2013, 2016 amendments)
- The Education (Penalty Notices) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2013

This policy also refers to the DfE's guidance on the school census, which explains the persistent absence threshold.

4. Roles and responsibilities

4.1 The Local Governing Body

The Governing Body is responsible for:

- Promoting the importance of school attendance across the school's policies and ethos
- Making sure school leaders fulfil expectations and statutory duties
- Regularly reviewing and challenging attendance data
- Monitoring attendance figures for the whole school
- Making sure staff receive adequate training on attendance
- Holding the headteacher to account for the implementation of this policy

4.2 The Headteacher

The Headteacher is responsible for:

- Implementation of this policy at the school
- Monitoring school-level absence data and reporting it to governors
- Supporting staff with monitoring the attendance of individual pupils
- Monitoring the impact of any implemented attendance strategies
- Requesting a penatly notice to be issued by the Education Welfare Service
- Implementing the parenting contract between schools and parents to support with absence

4.3 The Designated Senior Leader responsible for Attendance

The Designated Senior Leader is responsible for:

- Offering a clear vision for attendance improvement
- Ensuring that the learning environment, on offer to pupils, creates the foundations for excellent attendance and punctuality
- Co-ordinating and monitoring the policy and procedures for attendance and punctuality throughout the school.
- Raising the profile and importance of attendance and punctuality, for example, through the assemblies and the reward systems that are put in place
- Evaluating and monitoring expectations and processes
- Having an oversight of data analysis
- Devising specific strategies to address areas of poor attendance identified through data
- Facilitating calls and meetings with parents to discuss attendance issues
- Delivering targeted intervention and support to pupils and families

The Designated Senior Leader responsible for attendance is Hayley Lewis and can be contacted via telephone on 0208 640 4795 or email on

4.4 The School Attendance Officer

The School Attendance Officer is responsible for:

- Monitoring and analysing attendance data
- Benchmarking attendance data to identify areas of focus for improvement
- Providing regular attendance reports to school staff and reporting concerns about attendance to the designated senior leader responsible for attendance and the headteacher
- Liaising with the designated senior leader and assist in following up poor attendance and punctuality, for example, organising attendance meetings with parents/carer
- Working with Education Welfare Officers (EWO) to tackle persistent absence
- Advising the Headteacher when to issue penalty notices

The School Attendance Officer is Hayley Lewis and can be contacted via telephone on 0208 640 4795 or email via <u>office@beecholme.paceacademy.uk</u>

4.5 Class Teachers

Class teachers are responsible for recording attendance on a daily basis, using the correct codes, and submitting this information to the school office at the end of registration period in the morning and afternoon sessions

4.6 School Administration Staff

School administration staff will:

- Take calls from parents about absence on a day-to-day basis and record it on the school system
- Refer parents to the class teacher or dedicated attendance lead in order to provide them with more detailed support on attendance

- Carry out first day calling/text messaging and establish reasons for absence including telephone calls to parents/carers on the first day of absence, send attendance letters
- Ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of the school computerised registration systems for attendance and punctuality, for example, processing registers

4.7 Parents and Carers

Parents and carers are expected to:

- To be fully supportive of the school with regard to attendance and punctuality
- Make sure their child attends school every day on time
- Call the school to report their child's absence before 9 am on the day of the absence and advise when they are expected to return
- Provide the school with more than 1 emergency contact number for their child
- Ensure that, where possible, appointments for their child are made outside of the school day
- To support the school and their child (ren) by not requesting authorised absence for holidays, during term time
- To contact the school immediately if they have concerns or if there are issues preventing full time attendance.

4.8 Pupils

Pupils are expected to:

- Attend school every day on time
- To ensure they maximise their learning potential by taking responsibility for achieving excellent levels of attendance and punctuality
- To discuss with their teacher any problems that may prevent full time attendance or punctual arrival at school
- To support their fellow pupils and thereby their class in winning awards that relate to attendance and punctuality.

5. Recording attendance

5.1 Attendance register

We will keep an attendance register, and place all pupils onto this register.

We will take our attendance register at the start of the morning session of each school day and once during the afternoon session. It will mark whether every pupil is:

- Present
- Attending an approved off-site educational activity
- Absent
- Unable to attend due to exceptional circumstances

See appendix 1 for the DfE attendance codes.

Any amendment to the attendance register will include:

- The original entry
- The amended entry
- The reason for the amendment
- The date on which the amendment was made
- The name and position of the person who made the amendment

We will also record:

- Whether the absence is authorised or not
- The nature of the activity if a pupil is attending an approved educational activity
- The nature of circumstances where a pupil is unable to attend due to exceptional circumstances

We will keep every entry on the attendance register for 3 years after the date on which the entry was made.

Pupils must arrive in school by 9am on each school day. The children are encouraged to arrive to school when the doors open at 8.45am where they can take part in early morning work and activities.

The register for the first session will be taken at 9am and will be kept open until 9.30am. If the child arrives after 9am but before 9.30am they will be marked in as late. If the child arrives after 9.30am they will receive a missing mark for the morning session. The register for the second session will be taken at 1pm and will be kept open until 1.30pm. If the children are not in attendance by 1.30pm they will be marked as absent.

5.2 Unplanned absence

The pupil's parent/carer must notify the school of the reason for the absence on the first day of an unplanned absence by 9am or as soon as practically possible by calling the school office or emailing <u>office@beecholme.paceacademy.uk</u>. If the school is not notified of a child's unplanned absence parents will receive a text message or a call from the school office to discuss why the child isn't in attendance. Parents should inform the school each day to explain their child's absence.

We will mark absence due to illness as authorised unless the school has a genuine concern about the authenticity of the illness.

If the authenticity of the illness is in doubt, the school may ask the pupil's parent/carer to provide medical evidence, such as a prescription, appointment card or other appropriate form of evidence. We will not ask for medical evidence unnecessarily.

If the school is not satisfied with the authenticity of the illness, the absence will be recorded as unauthorised and parents/carers will be notified of this.

5.3 Planned absence

Attending a medical or dental appointment will be counted as authorised as long as the pupil's parent/carer notifies the school in advance of the appointment.

To request time off for medical appointments parents should liaise with the school office in person, via telephone of email. Parents will need to provide information about the appointment, who the appointment is for, the date, time and the medical evidence for the appointment. This could include an appointment card, letter or a text message. We require the parents to notify the school as to when the children will be returning to school.

However, we encourage parents/carers to make medical and dental appointments out of school hours where possible. Where this is not possible, the pupil should be out of school for the minimum amount of time necessary.

The pupil's parent/carer must also apply for other types of term-time absence as far in advance as possible of the requested absence.

Go to section 6 to find out which term-time absences the school can authorise.

5.4 Punctuality

A pupil who arrives late:

- Before the register has closed will be marked as late, using the appropriate code
- After the register has closed will be marked as absent, using the appropriate code
- It is exceptionally important that the children arrive to school on time. This ensures they don't miss any valuable learning time and feel fully regulated when they enter the classroom. Children who arrive past 9am will be classified as late as this is when the register closes.
- For those children who are persistently late families will be initially contacted by the child's teacher to discuss any concerns and how the school can support the child being punctual. If the lateness continues parents will receive a letter from the Head of the school sharing the concerns the school have and offering a meeting for the parents to come in to look at ways the school can support. Following this, if the school continue to have concerns, they will make a referral to the local authority and parents will be contacted by the educational welfare officer. The educational welfare officer will work with families as a supportive measure, however they do have the authority to refer families to legal proceedings and penalty notices if lateness is persistent once the register has closed.

• 5.5 Following up unexplained absence

Where any pupil we expect to attend school does not attend, or stops attending, without reason, the school will:

- Call the pupil's parent/carer on the morning of the first day of unexplained absence to ascertain the reason. If the school cannot reach any of the pupil's emergency contacts, the school may carry out a home visit, contact the education welfare officer, children's services or the police to support with a home visit.
- Identify whether the absence is approved or not
- Identify the correct attendance code to use and input it as soon as the reason for absence is ascertained this will be no later than 5 working days after the session
- Call the parent/carer on each day that the absence continues without explanation to ensure proper safeguarding action is taken where necessary. If absence continues, the school will consider involving an education welfare officer
- If the unexplained absence continues over a period of 20 days, in conjunction with the local authority the child will be classified missing in education and can potentially be off rolled from the school's register in agreement with the local authority.

5.6 Reporting to parents/carers

The school will regularly inform parents about their child's attendance and absence levels via:

- School newsletters
- Parents Evening
- School reports
- Whole school attendance letters
- If children's attendance drops below 96% they will be informed

6. Authorised and unauthorised absence

6.1 Approval for term-time absence – Appendix 2

The Governors of School believe that leave of absence during term time should be avoided as it can have a damaging effect on a student's education and overall achievement. However, it is recognised that on occasions there may be extenuating or compassionate reasons that justify such leave.

The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Amendment Regulations 2013 state that head teachers may not grant any leave of absence during term time unless there are exceptional circumstances. Head teachers should determine the number of school days a child can be away from school if the leave is granted.

With regard to the regulation outlined above the school policy is as follows:

1. Parents must request leave for exceptional circumstances as far in advance as possible.

2. The request should be made in writing using the leave of absence form. (Available from the school office) Verbal requests will be recorded in writing.

3. This must include the reason why you feel that it is necessary to take a leave of absence. This may include any extenuating or compassionate reasons, including evidence of circumstances such as medical certificate or letter from employers.

On receipt of an application for leave on the appropriate form together with any supporting documentation, consideration will be given to the circumstance. A letter outlining the decision of the school will be sent to you within 7 days.

Any leave of absence that is not authorised is very likely to result in a Penalty Notice being issued by the London Borough of Merton. The Penalty Notice carries a fine of £120

6.2 Legal sanctions

Any leave of absence that is not authorised is very likely to result in the issuing of Penalty Notice Fine by the London Borough of Merton, where the child is of compulsory school age.

The Fine, if issued is for £120, per parent per child. If paid within 21 days the fine is reduced to £60 per parent per child. In Merton Penalty Notices are issued by the Local Authority at the request of the School in line with the Code of Conduct.

If the payment has not been made after 28 days, the matter will usually proceed to the Magistrates Court under s4441 Education Act 1996. If convicted the Parent may face a fine of up to £1000 and will receive a criminal record.

7. Strategies for promoting attendance and punctuality

As a school we are committed to working together to promote high levels of attendance, and to act on an early intervention basis where attendance and punctuality become a concern. To promote attendance and punctuality we:

- Keep parents up to date with attendance via: whole school letters, newsletters and regular communication if a child's attendance drops below 96%
- Regular celebration assemblies to share and celebrate good attendance
- Attendance bears that are awarded for classes with the best attendance
- Rewards for classes and children with the best attendance
- 100% termly and yearly attendance certificates
- Parenting contracts

Parenting Contracts – Appendix 3

A parenting contract is a formal written agreement with the School, Parent(s), Pupil(s), and School's Education Welfare Officer (EWO).

The aim is to offer support by listening to the reasons for absence and difficulties that prevent regular school attendance during a meeting with the Parents, Child, School staff and EWO.

The purpose of the meeting it to set out an action plan to address the poor school attendance of the pupil with realistic achievable targets to be made within a reasonable time scale. A Parenting Contract can cease after 4 weeks if there is no improvement in attendance/punctuality in line with the targets set.

8. Attendance and punctuality monitoring

Attendance and punctuality will be monitored throughout the year. The school's attendance target is 96%. Beecholme has the following attendance and punctuality monitoring procedures, to ensure that children' attendance and punctuality meets the expected standard, and effective intervention is provided where children' attendance and/or punctuality falls below the standard:

8.1 Monitoring attendance and punctuality

The school will:

- Monitor attendance and absence data half-termly, termly and yearly across the school and at an individual pupil level
- Attendance and punctuality is discussed by classroom teachers during team meetings. Any attendance/punctuality trends noticed by classroom teachers are passed immediately to the SLT.
- Monitor punctuality data on a regular basis
- Weekly meetings held with HOS and office admin staff in charge of attendance to monitor a child's attendance

- Termly meetings with the educational welfare officer
- Reports by the Fisher Family trust are reviewed weekly to identify attendance levels and identify any concerns
- Identify whether or not there are particular groups of children whose absences and/or punctuality may be a cause for concern
- Where there is a cause for concern attendance will be monitored weekly
- A termly attendance data report is written by the designated senior leader and shared with governors and staff

Pupil-level absence data will be collected each term and published at national and local authority level through the DfE's school absence national statistics releases. The underlying school-level absence data is published alongside the national statistics. The school will compare attendance data to the national average, and share this with the governing board.

8.2 Analysing attendance and punctuality

The school will:

- Analyse attendance, absence and punctuality data regularly to identify pupils or cohorts that need additional support with their attendance and/or punctuality, and use this analysis to provide targeted support to these pupils and their families
- Look at historic and emerging patterns of attendance, absence and punctuality, and then develop strategies to address these patterns
- Provide attendance information to PACE Academy Trust on a termly basis and discuss outcomes with Trust leadership

8.3 Using data to improve attendance and punctuality

The school will:

- Provide regular attendance reports to class teachers and other school leaders, to facilitate discussions with pupils and families
- Use data to monitor and evaluate the impact of any interventions put in place in order to modify them and inform future strategies

8.4 Reducing persistent and severe absence

Persistent absence is where a pupil misses 10% or more of school, and severe absence is where a pupil misses 50% or more of school.

The school will:

- Closely monitor a child's attendance
- When a child's attendance drops below a certain level parents will receive a letter from the school
- Use attendance data to find patterns and trends of persistent and severe absence

- Hold regular meetings with the parents of pupils who the school considers to be vulnerable, or are persistently or severely absent, to discuss attendance and engagement at school
- Provide families with support with internal support mechanisms ELSA
- Provide access to wider support services to remove the barriers to attendance
- Involve the educational welfare officer as a supportive measure

9. Deletions from the register /removals from the school role

Parents must ensure they inform the school of any change of address, contact details or family circumstances. Should a parent advise they are moving and will be removing their child (ren) from the school role, the school must attempt to obtain the parent's new address and if possible, the name of the new school the child will be attending. If this information is not supplied the school will complete a Missing from Education form and forward it to the LA.

The school will report a child is Missing from Education to the LA, following 20 consecutive days of absence, when all checks have been exhausted. This will include: telephone calls to all known numbers on the school system, including relatives, discussion with class teacher and known friends of pupil, home visit by School/ EWO. The school will notify the children missing from education team via USOFX with the relevant information and await confirmation to remove.

Child Missing in Education

If a pupil moves too far from Beecholme Primary to attend the school/moves out of the area/abroad the parents must complete a school leavers form, available from the school office. This will provide Beecholme with the pupil's new home address, potentially their new school name and contact details and contact information for their parents/carers. If no/insufficient detail is provided to the school, the pupil will be referred to the Local Authority as a Child Missing from Education and the Local Authority will need to make appropriate checks.

Part Time Timetables

All pupils of compulsory school age are entitled to a full-time education. In very exceptional circumstances, where it is in a pupil's best interests, there may be a need for a temporary part-time timetable to meet their individual needs. For example, where a medical condition prevents a pupil from attending full-time education and a part-time timetable is considered as part of a re-integration package. (Working Together to Improve School Attendance).

A part-time timetable must only be in place for the shortest time necessary and not be treated as a longterm solution. Any pastoral support programme or other agreement should have a time limit by which point the pupil is expected to attend full-time, either at school or alternative provision.

There should also be formal arrangements in place for regularly reviewing it with the pupil and their parents. In agreeing to a part-time timetable, a school has agreed to a pupil being absent from school for part of the week or day and therefore must treat absence as authorised and code in the register as a C, which is an authorised absence.

10. Monitoring arrangements

This policy will be reviewed as guidance from the DfE is updated, and as a minimum annually by Hayley Lewis Head of School. At every review, the policy will be approved by the local governing board.

11. Links with other policies

This policy links to the following policies:

- Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy
- Behaviour policy

Appendix 1: attendance codes

Code	Definition	Scenario
/	Present (am)	Pupil is present at morning registration
١	Present (pm)	Pupil is present at afternoon registration
L	Late arrival	Pupil arrives late before register has closed
В	Off-site educational activity	Pupil is at a supervised off-site educational activity approved by the school
D	Dual registered	Pupil is attending a session at another setting where they are also registered
L	Interview	Pupil has an interview with a prospective employer/educational establishment
Р	Sporting activity	Pupil is participating in a supervised sporting activity approved by the school
v	Educational trip or visit	Pupil is on an educational visit/trip organised, or approved, by the school
w	Work experience	Pupil is on a work experience placement

The following codes are taken from the DfE's guidance on school attendance.

Code	Definition Scenario	
	Authorised a	ibsence
с	Authorised leave of absence	Pupil has been granted a leave of absence due to exceptional circumstances
E	Excluded	Pupil has been excluded but no alternative provision has been made

н	Authorised holiday	Pupil has been allowed to go on holiday due to exceptional circumstances		
I	Illness	School has been notified that a pupil will be absent due to illness		
м	Medical/dental appointment	Pupil is at a medical or dental appointment		
R	Religious observance	Pupil is taking part in a day of religious observance		
S	Study leave	Year 11 pupil is on study leave during their public examinations		
т	Gypsy, Roma and traveller absence	Pupil from a traveller community is travelling, as agreed with the school		
	Unauthorised absence			
G	Unauthorised holiday	Pupil is on a holiday that was not approved by the school		
N	Reason not provided	Pupil is absent for an unknown reason (this code should be amended when the reason emerges, or replaced with code O if no reason for absence has been provided after a reasonable amount of time)		
0	Unauthorised absence	School is not satisfied with reason for pupil's absence		
U	Arrival after registration	Pupil arrived at school after the register closed		

Code	Definition	Scenario
x	Not required to be in school	Pupil of non-compulsory school age is not required to attend

Y	Unable to attend due to exceptional circumstances	School site is closed, there is disruption to travel as a result of a local/national emergency, or pupil is in custody
z	Pupil not on admission register	Register set up but pupil has not yet joined the school
#	Planned school closure	Whole or partial school closure due to half- term/bank holiday/INSET day

Appendix 2: Request for leave term time for exceptional circumstances.



LONDON BOROUGH OF MERTON

Request for Leave of Absence for exceptional circumstances during Term Time

It is not advisable to take your child/ren on a leave of absence during term time as this causes disruption to their education. Schools must follow the law in this regard and may only grant leave in exceptional circumstances if certain criteria are fulfilled.

The Pupil Registration Regulations (England) 2006 and the Education (Pupil Registration) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2013

- Leave of Absence in exceptional circumstances is authorised at the discretion of the Head teacher. (This is not an automatic right of parents/Carers)
- You should not normally take your child(ren) on a leave of absence during the school term.
- Please do not book your leave of absence until authority is given.
- Each request for leave of absence will be considered individually, taking into account: the circumstances for the request, the supporting evidence provided, the overall attendance of your child(ren), your child's stage of education and progress and where appropriate both internal and external examinations and assessments.
- If the absence is approved by the Head Teacher you will be advised as to how many days the Head teacher has approved for your child's absence (Maximum of 3 days).

- If the school does not agree the absence and you take the leave without permission or your child is absent for more than the agreed number of days the absence will be unauthorised.
- Leave of absence taken without the authorisation of the school may lead to your child(ren) being referred to the Education Welfare Service and the possibility of statutory action and a fine.

In order for your application for absence to be considered, please complete below:

Name(s) of Child(rem	ר):	
Form/Year		
Home address:		
Dates of absence:	From:	То:
Reason for request (additional evidence may be re	equired)
		······
		······
Signed: Parent/Care	יר:	Date:
Email address:		e phone no:
Date form submitted: .		
The above request f	or leave of absence in term tir	me for:
	has/has not bee	en authorised.
If authorised, your c	hild/ren should return to scho:	ool on:

Signed: Designation:

School Data Checklist:

For School Office Use Only

Pupil's Name	
% Attendance Yr to date	
Attainment/Progress	
Previous leave of absence Requested/taken (Last 2 Years	

Appendix 3: Guidance and examples of parenting contracts

Parenting Contract requirements, good practice and template

A parenting contract is a formal written agreement with the School/Academy, Parent(s), Pupil(s), and School/Academies Education Welfare Officer (EWO) or appropriate Lead Professional

A parenting contract is not a punitive tool and is designed to provide a support framework.

Parents can't be compelled to enter into a contract and they cannot be agreed in the absence of the parent/s

A letter should be sent to the parents/carers to invite them to a meeting to discuss the concerns regarding attendance and/or punctuality with a time and date of the appointment and details of who to contact if this is not convenient.

- The appointment should be arranged in advanced.
- The letter(s) should be sent by post to the home addressed to each individual parent.
- Both Parents should be invited to attend unless this would place one or other at risk or be counterproductive.
- The letter should be translated into a language that the parent understands.
- The letter should include that they should bring the child with them if they are not in school that day or if they are in school advise the parent that they will be bought to the meeting if they are able to understand and contribute.

- Offer the parent the opportunity to discuss matters in private that may be sensitive.
- If an interpreter is needed then this should be booked in advance. Family members should not be used.
- The Representative of the School/Academy must be able to make commitments on behalf of the establishment, at the meeting.

Parenting Contracts should be in place for a minimum of 3 months and a maximum of 12 months.

The aim is to offer support by listening to the reasons for absence and difficulties that prevent regular school attendance during a meeting with the parents, child, School/Academy staff and EWO/Attendance Lead in the school where appropriate.

It should set out an action plan to address the poor school attendance of the pupil with realistic achievable targets to be made within a reasonable time.

Be written in clear and accessible language that everyone understands.

Any issues raised by the parent/carer or pupil on the school's side are addressed with specific solutions.

It should avoid general statements of good intentions on either side.

Everyone attending should be asked to score the level of concern as per the scale shown on the Parenting Contract.

A review date should be set at the initial meeting

The Parenting Contract should be printed and signed at the end of the Meeting (time should be allowed for this to happen) Everyone at the meeting should be given a copy of the Parenting Contract and a copy placed on the pupil's file.

Further information and advice is available on Parenting Contracts in Working Together to Improve School Attendance <u>Working together to improve school attendance - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)</u>. Please also see <u>Appendix 1</u>

Parenting contracts can be used as an outcome of a TAF meeting <u>https://www.mertonscp.org.uk/working-with-children/effective-support-for-families-in-merton/</u> including templates for meetings and family plans.

Useful links:

Early Help/Children's Social Care - candfhub@merton.gov.uk

Below are some suggestions of tasks/actions that you may wish to include. You may also wish to include tasks or actions that are specific to the pupil or family.

The Parent/Carer agrees to:

Suggested Action

Make sure pupil attends school every day

Contact the school by phone to check attendance

Look for the pupil and when possible return them to school should they have chosen to walk out of school

Attend any future meetings that may be called by school staff or Education Welfare Officer/Lead Professional

Notify the school on the day of absence, giving a reason and indicating a return date/time.

Contact the school as soon as you become aware of any concerns, issues or problems that you or the pupil have.

Contact the EWO if the pupil feels that the school are not dealing with any issue, or if the pupil feels uncomfortable about discussing an issue with the school.

Find out where the pupil goes when he/she is not in school and inform the EWO so that action can be taken if this arises.

Notify the school of any occasions when you are aware that the pupil will be late into school giving reasons

Keep the school updated with full contact details, including, where possible, a telephone number.

Ensure the pupil is seen by a GP/a GP is consulted when ill and provide medical evidence of any absence due to illness (i.e. appointment cards, prescriptions, letters etc.)

Address the concerns that the child has about leaving home or why they stay at home

Reward child with extra positive activities at home / weekend with improved attendance

The school agrees to:

Suggested Action

Address concerns related to why the child doesn't want to be in school - this could be extra support with learning/ friendship groups/ bullying

Respond as soon as practicably possible to any issues raised by the Pupil, Parent/carer or Lead Professional. If contacted by the Parent/Carer by phone or e mail response to be within 2 working days.

Meet child every morning in an agreed room to help them start the day well

Arrange to meet with the pupil regularly or when the pupil requires

Allow the child to access after school activity to build confidence or success / build new peer group

Provide support, help or advice to the pupil, parent/carer or school staff on request.

Meet with the parent/carer, pupil or school staff in the first instance should there be any further issues or problems identified particularly relating to attendance or punctuality

Refer child to extra support provided by in school services ie Mental Health in schools support

To make referrals to appropriate agencies – state which ones

Work with Social Care or Early Help/appropriate agency as appropriate attending meetings regarding the pupil or family

Review attendance after weeks with Line Manager and agree further action as necessary

The Lead Professional / Education Welfare Officer agrees to:

Suggested Action

Respond as soon as practicably possible to any issues raised by the pupil, parent/career or school staff.

Provide support, help or advice to the pupil, parent/carer or school staff on request.

Provide the parent/carer(s) with details of a place on a Parenting Program

Meet with the parent/carer, pupil or school staff in the first instance should there be any further issues or problems identified particularly relating to attendance or punctuality

Arrange to meet with the pupil regularly or when the pupil requires

Review attendance after weeks with Line Manager and agree further action as necessary

Consider the use of the Common Assessment Framework

Contact other professionals supporting the pupil to clarify roles

The Pupil agrees to:

Suggested Action

Attend school as agreed and on time

Be responsible for obtaining a registration mark even if they are late for school

Attend any future meetings as felt necessary by parent, school staff, lead professional or Education Welfare Officer

Be responsible for getting out of bed each morning to get to school on time and be aware that if he/she is late he/she will have to face the consequences

Make sure they follow the conditions of any attendance report

Tell their parent/carer of any concerns especially if they are likely to affect attendance

Contact the EWO or the identified teacher and let them know of any problems they have generally or relating to his/her schoolwork

If the Parent/s who sign this Parenting Contract do not follow through with what has been agreed and attendance fails to improve to the agreed level set for the child or an appropriate level (over 90% for more than 6 weeks) consideration will be needed as what further actions will now support an improvement in attendance.

For example: They may issue a Penalty Notice Warning to each parent and/or discuss with the Local Authority whether an Education Supervision Order (ESO) is indicated in this case. The decision to apply for an ESO rests entirely with the Local Authority.





Beecholme Primary School

Parenting Contract

Student's Name	DOB / Year group	Student's school

Parent/carer 1 full name	Parent/Carer 2 full name	Address
Contact number	Contact number	
Child's ethnicity	Any SEND	Date
		Time (start/end)
Attendance during last 12 weeks	Sessions of unauthorised absence	Number of late marks
What are we worried about	t? What's working well?	What needs to happen?
		What will it look like to not be worried anymore?
	0 10	
	neans (pupils name) is attending school i onal circumstances and when authorise	

Targets for pupil, parent, school and agencies	Date to be achieved by	Review of targets	Date to be achieved by

Date of review:

This is a voluntary agreement where all parties agree to work together to follow the agreed plan to support the pupil attend school regularly and punctually.

I agree to work together with school and the local authority to follow the agreed plan

Signed:	Date:	Student's score
[child]		
Signed:	Date:	Parent's score
[parent]		
Signed:	Date:	Parent's score
[parent]		

I agree to provide the above support to the parent(s) for the purpose of complying with the plan.

Signed:	Date:	School score
Academy/School		

I agree to provide the above support to the parent(s) for the purpose of complying with the plan.

Signed:	Date:	EWO's score
Lead professional/ EWO		
Signed:	Date:	Professionals score

Other professional List job title/role

Working together to improve attendance

Successfully treating the root causes of absence and removing barriers to attendance, at home, in school or more broadly requires schools and local partners to work collaboratively with, not against families. All partners should work together to:

MONITOR

Rigorously use attendance data to identify patterns of poor attendance (at individual and cohort level) as soon as possible so all parties can work together to resolve them before they become entrenched.

EXPECT

Aspire to high standards of attendance from all pupils and parents and build a culture where all can, and want to, be in school and ready to learn by prioritising attendance improvement across the school.

LISTEN AND UNDERSTAND

When a pattern is spotted, discuss with pupils and parents to listen to understand barriers to attendance and agree how all partners can work together to resolve them.

FACILITATE SUPPORT

Remove barriers in school and help pupils and parents to access the support they need to overcome the barriers outside of school. This might include an early help or whole family plan where absence is a symptom of wider issues.

FORMALISE SUPPORT

Where absence persists and voluntary support is not working or not being engaged with, partners should work together to explain the consequences clearly and ensure support is also in place to enable families to respond. Depending on the circumstances this may include formalising support through a parenting contract or education supervision order.

ENFORCE

Where all other avenues have been exhausted and support is not working or not being engaged with, enforce attendance through statutory intervention prosecution to protect the pupil's right to an education.